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A. PERSONAL FACTORS.

1. At the commencementof the Risingwereyou a
memberof anyof the liveorganizntionswhichtook
part, viz.:

The Irish Volunteers

Irish Citizen Army

Fianna Pheann

Hibernian Ruish

Cumannna mBan

2. Were youa memberof the Executive,H.Q. Stafi,
etc?

3. To what unit e.g., Brigade, Battalion,Company.
etc, were youattached

4. Did you take part in the Rising?

5. Were you in undown?

6. What was yourrank orofficeat thecommencement
of the Rising?

7. When andby whomwereyouappointed?

8. Wasyour rank alteredduringtheRising?

In what circumstancesand by whom?
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9. What postsor officesdid you hold previously?

10. Who werethe officersof your Brigade,Battalion
and of Companyinpiediately prior to and duringthe Rising?

11. Which of your lnit officerstook part in the
Rising?

12. Who wereappointedto replacethosewho didnot
turn out, andby whoseauthority?

13. At the time of the Risingwereyou a memberof
the I.R.B.?

14. If so what wasyourposition

15. When did you bin?

In what circle?

Where did it usuallymeet?

Who wasits centre?

How many memberswere there?

Can you give names?

By whomwere youintrodueedand by whomwere
you swornin?
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B. THE VOLUNEERS PRIOR TO THE RISING.

1. To what extent and in what way were the I.R.B.
responsiblefor

(a) the formationof the Irish Volunteers,and

(b) the directionof its policy?

2. What werethe channelsthough whichit exercised
its influence?

3. What membersof the I.R.B. held key postsin
the Volunteers,and howwasthat arranged?

4. Did the circumstancesleading to the expulsion
ofMr. JohnRedmond'snomineesfromtheExecutive
of the Irish Volunteerson 24th September,1914,
have anybearingontheholdingofthe First Annual
Conventionon 25th October,1914. If so,how

5. Had arrangementsbeenmadeto holdthe Conven-tion
Conven-tionbeforethe expulsion?

6. Did the First Conventionclarity or developthe
stated policyof the Volunteersin any way?

7. How many delegatesat that Conventionwere
membersof the I.R.B.?

How many weresupportersofthe Irish Party?

How many were supportersof Sinn Féin, i.e.,
Arthur Griffith'spolicy?

How many had no affiliationwith any political
party?

Can you give names?
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8. Between the First Annual Conventionon 25th
October,1914, and the Secondon 31st October, no knoralrye1915. how often did the GeneralCouncil Meet?

Are the minutes of these meetingsavailable?

9. Was generalpoliey liseussedat theseMeetings?

How far was there unauunity outlookwithin
the Connellon policy?

10. Did the SecondAnnualConventionon 31stOctober
1915, considerpolicy, or clarify it or developit pohawore
in any way?

Can you give particulars?

Who led the discussions?

What derisionson general polieywere made?

11. SevenG.H.Q. postsare mentionedin the reportof
the SecondAnnual Conventionof the Volunteers
of 31st October,1915. Accordingto information
given in various issuesof the Irish
and elsewhere,thesepostsand the occupantsof
someof them,were:

1. Chiefof staff-Eoin MacNeill.

2. Director of Arms-The O'Rahilly.

3. Director of Training-Thomas McDonagh.

4. Director of Military Organisation P. H.
Pearse.

5. Quartermaster-MichaelStaines.

6. Directorof Military Operations

7. Director of Communications



RENINISOENGES OF FRVE YEARS AERVIOE OF AN IRISH VOLUNTERS

Alderman P.S. Doyle, T.D.

The policy of physical force had been preached for centuries in

Ireland. Great and courageous efforts were made from time to time

and many great Irish leaders Tone and the United Irishmen, Fintan

Lalor and Young Irelanders, John Mitohell etc., advocated it, but

it was only after the Boer War that militant nationalists oreated an

impression that there was little or no hope of Ireland gaining her

freedom unless they armed themselves.

No physiea1 force movement properly so called existed in Ireland

in the 20th Century until the foundation of the Ulster Volunteers in

the year 1912. That movement was unique inasmuch as it was founded to

oppose and not to achieve National ináependence. It was also different

from other physioal force. movements in Ireland in that it was to a

great extent open instead of seoret. On account of its apparent

open character it was regarded at the time, and is even at this date

regarded as theatrical rather than real. Whether or not it was ever

intended to be a realmovement is of little practical concern to-day.

Its founders and these prominently associated with it during its

period of growth were scarecely people who, in any set of ciroumstances,

would be visualised in open conflict with the forces of the British

Grown for the purpose of forcing the British Government to release its

hold in this country. The truth probably is that the leaders of the

movement were playing a politioal game in the interests of their own

assendancy in Ireland and in the interests of the British political

party, with which they were associated. It is also probably true

that the rank and file of the movement knew in their hearts that they

would never be called upon to oppose the Grown forces, that the mere

fact of their organising would achieve the political objects. of the

leaders, and that incidentally they would be left with a powerful

organisation for the domination of those of their fellow-countrymen

who differed from them in their political faith.

These objects were in fact achieved in full by the Ulster

Volunteers but only because the ruling part in England were weakened

and lake-warm in their avowed policy of extending a very modified

and attenuated form of self-government to Ireland. If that ruling
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party had possessed one half of the conviction and determination of

their opponents, the Ulster Voluntser movement would have bsen put to

the test, and that test must inevitably have exposed the weakness and

hollowness of the movement, notwithstanding the fire-eating speeches

and martial demonstration that were such nominent features of the

movement.

Apart however from these son sonsiantions the Ulster Volunteer

govement had a value for Ireland witch the history of the succeeding

ten years very olearly demonatrates.

The Arms Act had been peaseled as cundoally at all events any

Iriahman could possess arms. Notwithstanding this, however, there can

be no doubt but that if a national Volunteer movement had been started

with the avomed object of national independence before the foundation

of the Ulster Volunteer movamant, such national Volunteer movement would

have been spsedily suppressed. England would not have allowed the

possibility of another 1782. It was only under cover of a movement like

the Ulster Volunteer movement that the wational Volunteer movement became

possible. That posaibility soon peseme to those who, in the

coming deoads, were to become Irsland's political and military leaders

and in 1913 the Britrsh overmant, having tolwrated the foundation and

growth of the ulater volunteer movement, bad to look on white a similar

national volunteer movement took ehans.

There is little decbt the that even in there circunatanoes the

British Government would have moved but for the fact that, seoute in

the conseiousenses of their own trength they preferred to believe that

the new movement, like its sister movsment in the North, was merely

thestrioal and they were fortified in that belief by the attitude of

the people generally towards the movement and particularly by the

attitude of the then national politioal leaders.

Neither of the Volunweer movemeuts impressed itself on the public

mind as a force to be reckoned with, until the Larne Gun-Running coup

was carried out by the Ulster Volunteers. This was probably theatrical

too, but it fored the public imagination and the National Volunteers

had seriously to consider the question of arming. The result was the

Howth gun-running enisods which gave the first arms to the Volunteers

and nearly precipitated a coafliot with British forces on the same day.
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That was the last sunday of July, 1914, and it was on that day

that snots wers first fired in angor in the streets of Dublin by

Britigh forces in a conglict which did not end for aeven years

As I have alroauy statadn the aoremd of the Volunteer movement

was aensational and all aver the country westings were being held

and companies formed, etc, Like averv other in dividual who took

an active part in the moven ant, taers ware many in teresting and

non-interestong inoi Sants, that one conlo valate. It is my

intention to refer to sowe of them and to aiva my own personal

observations and excanriances. Liae wost wno attended the hiatoric

garhating at the Rotunde Rink Danlin on 28th November 1913,

I then joined the volunteers and not with standing all the enthusiasm,

it took some tims to gst the various diatriots moving in a disciplinaty

way throughout the country, and every effort was made to get men of

every party to join the Volunteers.

At Ranthfarnham in June 1914, patriok pearas, speaking as

Commandat deelared that the Irish Volunteers ahould belong to no

section of the Irish people. br maka usa of their arms except at

the oall of the Nation.

Tha Ino Moora or weal eing meeting wes firad fer the lant Sunday

in July, 1914, the day of the Howth gun-runhing and elaoorate

arr angements were madeto focus public attention on this mesting

all the princical ?? ware oilled to sneak ?? on the

erevious Saturday night there was a wnistering rumour thet there

was "something doing" on the Howth Road the
following Sunday, 26th

July, 1914. Being chiefly respomsible for the organusing of this

meeting at Inenicore, Iwas obliged to return from Fairview as the

meeting had been fixed for 4 p.m. prior to that hour two bands and

several thousand people had assembled at the meeting place. At

4.30 there were no speakers and an empty braks for a platform. The

Reverend Father T.W. Hyan, C.C., now P.P. of Righ Strest, atepped

in to the breach and presided at the mseting. I was then faced with

the embarrasament of etanding up on a public platform for the first

time, and having referred to the Ulster Voluntears and our justifio-ationfor

claiming the right to arm, a message was conveyed to me
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that the South-Wales Borders had fired on the people at Bachelor's

walk, and I accordingly took steps to close the meeting as quickly as

pocaible, and I filly realiesd the aeriouaness of the position in having
such a lsrge orowd gatjdred in olcse hrexinity to the Military Barracke.

However, In doing no I requeated the attoncmnce of all desirous of

joining the volunteers at anelgh Bouring fiold on the following Tuesday.

Over 1.000 men attanded, qompanies were fopmed and Drill Instructora

appointed.

The Howth gun-ranning and its afteumath gave a tremendous fillip

to the volunteer movement bat normal developments got no ohance of

prooeading by reason of the outbreak of the Ureat War within a week.

In the heetic exoitement of that early war period, volunteering

became suddenly fashionable. The politioal leaders of the netion lost

their hesds and pledged the country to supoort England in the war.

They claimed the leadership of the volunteers and to a oertain extent

got it. The volunteer Movement was inundated by menbars who at the

time had no real aympasthywith the real ldasls of the volunteers.

Rapidly the volunteer Movement was peing converted in to a reoruiting

instrument for the British Army.

The inevi table auli teame when is eoald no lontar Ba avoided.

It may be out of place to refer briefly to this rather unforthunate

unheaval as it mffected the P. ?? ?? Batt., or the ?? volumteers
and of which I held the post of Quarter Master. Hsving no revords I

cannot name the date, but I havs alclear redbllection of noticing that

following the cecision of the Execou?? Gouancil, resolutions were sent

to all Compsnies, pledging allegianoe to the respctive lesders. There

were general Committees made up of the Chief Offucers of the Bsttaliom
and non-active membeps. On a particular Fridey ovening sfrer Drill

practioe, I notioed that scme people who were conspicnous by their

absence from meetongs, for some time were in attendance on that

partiousr occasion,At that time the Comnany's funds were about £150.

At the maeting referrad to, as anticipated. the Reaolution pledging
allegianoe to the Nstional or Bcdmondite Volunteers was moved but

defeated by four votes to six sa a result of whioh one of the Trustees
resigned and immediate steps were taken to fill his place. The late
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Mounaillor Patrick O'Carroll, was appointed as on that particular

night several important financial traneaotioas, deterred from the

previous week, had to be fulfilled.

It is not possible for ne to eroress bur disgust and indignation

in seeing such a splencid or ganisatien or bout 1.000 men assembling

twice weekly for Drill and ??????sionally taking part in route marching

and field marching now brscking up. Oh one cooasion 500 men marched

and took part with the cerstownBrigads to Shucerstown, Swords, and on

another occasion left ????? in the smell hours of a Sunday morning

and marched to the Dublia Mountains and beak. The feeling of most of

those taking part was that we were to obtain rifle, and there was much

disappointment that the rumour was not true. Such was the enthusiasm

But as I have stated the "split" come with all its evil effects. The

decision that a majority of the Committes of the Inerioore Vo1unteers

had decided to stand by the Executive Council was generally known the

next day, aid night after night the numbers attecding drill-oarade were

showing a considerahle falling off ????? Come 49 members

remained and on the approach of the Winger the use of the Emmet Ha1l

was obtained from the lrish transpott workers ??? Free of rent.

It was mow that the ??? ???? Mevemeut, wish minority of

the members, but purged from Imperial again emerged and proceeded

to prepare in ???? for ????? more far seeing people

said "rust come sooner or later" as the authorities more becoming more

vigilant coupled with the ????? Ireland opinion, and in come

pleces a hoatile feeling againet the Volunteers, the work of organis-ation

organis-ationwhich had to commenos again and an a very
derinite understanding

become very difficult. There. Were many stirring and exciting events,

at this and other Volunteer quarters that tested the alnoerity of

those who had remained staunch and there are many stories to be told,

but I will be content to refer to the ramarkable ocurage and daring

of Captain Con Colbert, who wee in full charge of the F. Coy., IV Batt,

throughout the whole period. Leoturing one night in pamet Hall he

warned those preasnt who numbered about 30, that if there was anyone

in their Company who was afraid to die they should make up their

minds by the coming week as to their future intention.
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He did pot intand wasting his own time and theirs unless they made

up their minds definitely as to their action when the day came".
He pointed out that ha had ?????? members of the Company

who would not be ???? "anecial" Mobilization
but that other wore ???? the. May I say here

and now that nothing
?????? previaion and I am

glad to be in a ????? a couple of axceptions

the Company with its ???? On intepsely and

consistently throughout

Fraining and general organiging continued unstated throughout

1914. 1915 and up till Easter 1916. The members were trained in

the art of war. Aras were obtained whenever and whenever posaible.

The progreas of events beoane rapid until ??? 1916.

Dawned. which was to see Dreland once mare in arus batrling with

the iavaders for her fresdon.

On Fridsy. 17th 1916, the publia battalions of the

Iriah Volunteers held ????? Different

sections paraded at the various city churehes and later the whole

force ???? a wplendid

display, and concluced pith a march past. About 2,000 Volunteers

tock part and
???? Bands

Playad national music and it was the firat display of its kind
since 1762.

"It is the natural ????? Of every netional to

have control of their own national affaire, andany body of the
peoples is entitled to asoert that right in the name of the peoplet.

This extract from a handbill distributed that day explained itself.

Deportation Crders were issued later ageinst certain leaders

of the voluntser including Ernest Slythe and Lias Hellowes and a

largely attended westing of protest was held in the mengion house,

preaided over
by the late alderman

Patrick Corrigan. Similer

Meetinge were held throughont the country and incidentally recruiting

meetings more the cauae of atreet disturbanoed and countersored
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Propagands of the Irish Volunteers. Occasional outbursts by

prominent Loyeliets calling on the British Government to take

deciaive action to ourtarl, ???? of the Volunteers and

at the some time to ??? to Recruiting for the

British Army were ????? to the affect that

the sotivities of the ?????? olose attention.

It would be ???? the many interesting

incidents of this period ??? like the present.

On Good Friday night there was a spsoial mobiligation order

for parade at the Quarry 3rd Lock. It was dark but fine and as

the members of the Company made their way to the meeting place

there was great surprise to find that there was a polioeman on

duty at this partioular place. However, having through through the

entranoe without comment, we were next confronted with an Irish

Terrier, who was fortunately chained up. The first job was plsoing

a guard on the policenan and ???? Then Robl call and

a distribution of several ????? of ??? tion. Quite

Recently ??? who spoke to ne on the Good Friday reminded

on of his ???? was I don't

know but whoever outliges the next couple of mouths will have something

to be proud of ???? a prophet.

within an hour the Company disperand and all looked forward to ???

Sunday morning for the ????

No detailed history of the rising has yet been written and it is

not my intention to deal with the wider inues of such a history.

Anart from the spectacular side and the gesture to the would

which it constituted, the Rising was a small affair staged by a

handful of determined men among a not too friendly population against

the forces of an Expire in arms.

Historians may diopute as to the ?? wisdom or otherwise of

that demonstration but none can deny the eplendid courage of those

who signed the proclamation of the Ronublic, of those who commended

the various positione which were ocoupied and finally of those who

for a week atubboraly held the British Empire at bay.
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The names of plunkett, Connolly, Rent, Olarke, KaeCermott, and

McDonagh will live for ever blazoned in letters of gold on the pages

of Irish history In signing the prolawetion they voluntarily signed

their own death warrants

Similarly those who poats the signatories

of the proolamation Eamonn de Valera

wed Daiy and all the dead ranked themselves

forever with those who of our Turkish Bight battle

for freedom

It would be invidious of me to attempt to spprtion praise to

living or to dead. Ail Were Animated with one soul and strove for one

object Irsland Subsequently Soknowledge them all They interpreted

her mind which she did not know herself and their names and cesds will

remain among her most treaursd possessions

So much for the general march of svents It is my honour to

have bgan a Volunteer in 1916 and to have played mysmall part in

Easter Week and I Will some little

incidents which had their serious as well as their humorous
wide

Prior to 1916 Left

on mymind I Will also give you some ides of what life was likewaslike for

sentenced Volunteer fellewing years

On Saturday Morning I Paid a visit to the Hedduaters at Dawson

Street and found all the funnl furesand paper ate bad been removed

The week just passed ward work I have yet

known Freparations wore being made for the general parade on Easter

Sunday Early on Seturday evening the news of Sir Roger Cassement's

arrest reached Dublin and ersated quite a sensation which was followed

cuickly by his arrival at kingsbridse under armed escort

At 10.30 that night the lets councilor W.F. Pattridge Called at

my home He had just returned from Tralee Where he had gone that

morning with a dispatch from Hesdquarters We disoussed the situation

generally regarding the "parade" arranged for the morning (Sunday) and

the developments resulting from the capturs
and arrest of Sir Roger

Casement the offioisl announcement of which on 24th April was as followe
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"During
the period April 20h to 21st an attempt to land ammunition

in Irelend was made by a Vssel under the guise of a neutral merchant

ship but reality a German Can iunotion with a German

Submarine The Auxiliary Sank and a bumbey of prisoners including

Sir Roger Casement were wade

I had a good shake nande with that night or rather

morning and our next nine months later

Easter Sunday Morning all but the arrival of the Sunday

Independent gave the announcement that the
Eater Mapoeuvres" would

not take place

Mr Eoin MaoNeill Ohief Of Staff's Letter Changed the whole position

the letter was as follows

"Owing
to the very oritieal posbtion all orders given to Irish

Voluntsers for to morrow Easter Sunday are has hereby reaoinded

and no parades marches or other movements of Irish Voluntesrs

will take plsoe Each Dndividuel Vodwnteer will obey this order

striotly in every particuisy

So Easter Sunday Passed off in a kind of subdued disappointment

and anxiety as towhat newt directiy

interested and who had definitely decided to pin their colours to the

mast felt that was to be sdded to

the long chsin of ill luck and misfortune that had so eften in the

past dashed the hopes and aslrpatlons of Irish Nationallste This was

how I felt and thought to
be in the the enemy was one thing

but to be nubjeoted to derision and contempt was uncomfortable and

discouraging so it cannot be claimed that the Volunteers enjoyed any

popularity at this period of their existence but there was a remarkable

changelater

Feeling Somewhat the worse of the ezertions and excitement of the

previbus wsek I decidsd to rest on Faster Monday but as it afterwards

transpired the counoll or Headouarters Stsff had been in session over

night and
in the early hours of Easter Konday a mobilization order was

issued by Commandant Thomas macDongh to the effeot that the four Gity



-10-

wattalione would parade at 10 s.m. that day full arms and equipment

and one day's rations.

At 9 the milliaeary council at full atrength dellberated on

the drafting of an ewargauey roclametlon In Dublin the Volunteers

who answered the cebilieaticn ordew asoembled at their poste at

10 o'clock as directed, in the msen time the authorities ware deliber-ating

in Dublin Castle anc hed been dseldad to arrest and intern

the leaders. This decisiou was gestpopiu in view of the all-Ireland

mobilieation being called of

I was reading the Dally Indenandent at five minutes past aine

preoisely, when Captain Con Colbert knocked at my door and inquired

for me My wife having directed him my room he said to me "Dood

moruing, peadar" "Get to Emerald Square, Dolphin's Barn by 10 o'clock

act as Sraff Oresrly to commandant Eamonn Ceannt" "Where will I

find his?" I enqulred, "You will have to find him he

raolied and left saying that he was going to Blanchardstown,

I iamediately dreaned and had wike as the time I thought was

a last farewell my wife and faaily I walked by Golden Bridge

Grand Canal and drrlveddat Fwerald Sausrs at 10 a.m. arseisely, to
find that I was to first to arrive excepting a policaman on duty,

I will leave it to your imagination assto how one could or should

feal under the oipemmatenped parading for aoaut halh in hour attired

in a semi-military uniform fully armed and 500 rouds of ammunitiom
ate., and your only companton pelieaman However relief oame at

last by McOrath ahouting through a yard gate Come in out of

that" On shtering the yard there was the late Mr John
cart loaded with war material and flying two large tri-cclours.

It was now nearing 11.30 and over 100 Volunteera had by this

time assembled, including Officera Eamonn Ceannt Csthal Brugha
Liam T, Coagrave and Con Colbert,

At this time while the Volunteera were assembling at half a

dozen oentred in the City, the Citizens were bustiling through the

city to Take the fullest acbantage of anjoying themselves It was
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glorioualy fine and thare son no thought in the ordinary mind

that an insurrection wasin the making however they had nor

long to wait and at or around thernour or 12 o'clock Dublin

was awakened and knaw that was mmething more than a

Voluntaer parade after

The order to twove or wem I wan ane oartiea marched to

Take over the Dualla thmson and arim tian lane Distillery and

jacob's The route to ary Cutlin Dvilsn was by cork streat

Robert strect Busin street wines atreet and aherp to

the chime of 12 o'clock the landerd had the teys of the chtes

in their passesaion an some fifty men were inside and persons

desiring to leave were permitted to do so The cares were then

belted and cemolate bosaeasion of the whole situstien taken

As steff Orderly to Gemmandant ceaant and Brughe an

inapection with the Survay mape of the buildinga was made and

men armed with Mosth Rifles cte. were nosted en vertous parts

of the rounds and bailand

On antering the Convant one of the huns wne opencd the door

inoulred I

politely but quickly replieq "Ne siater but we are is a hurry"

At that wise the oresant aite of the Corooration Cottagas

caannt's fort as

McCaffrey's Orehard About one doxen man wspe atatloned here

under cover of the tresee and no they taken up their

posts than a detaohment of Iafantry marched from Rianmond

Barracks Our men immediately opened fire and there was a

Dumber of Oasualtiea on both aides but it was genaraily believed

that the milltary suffered the most killed This bad the reault

or holdipg off the attack contemplstep I think it was in this

affray that Volunteers owene and Connellan were killed and Dan

McCarthy and a couple of othere wounded

The Dublin Union was one of the strong positions haid by the

Veluntears and several attacks were made from differapt points

and there ware a number of vary atiff ancountera Naving ddecided
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to make the Garden Huts the Headcuartere we took ocssesslon of a

large room facing the Canal Walk Ceannt and Brugha and Cosgrave

took Counell and I had the orivilege of writing the first despatches

to the O/o's at Marrowhone Dane and Jacob a Factory During the

dictyating and writiagetr the degpaton tulieba were coming through

the window of the wean I lafte to glee the despatones to

Volunteer Jos O'Gorman ge sare subjahced to a volley of rifle fire

from a number of about 10 seldfors who had mounted the canal wall

oppoaite and about 200 yarde distant Fortunstely their aim was

not so good or perhaps it was the diffioult position they held on

the wall that ambarrassed tham at any rate they were driven off

It was now ovident that with the amall force available it was not

possible to defend the entire area and Gsograve who had a general

knowledge of the buildinga suggested that the stone building on the

west side would be the Hesdquarteers. I than got orders to have our

ammunition removed to this quartars which lay

at an agle with and adjaoant to the front offices both granite

buildings ovarl ocking the Squars

Inside the front gate or James straet thare were roughly 48

men defanding the whols peaition 25 of whom were in the Nurses

Quartars as an attacr was anticipsred from the Canal side and we

had not long to wait

How to get the boxee or ammuaniclon and ecuipment removad from

the Aray to the new quarters set me thinking, because at this time I

was isolated from the company My instructions were to command a

roup or inmates to handle the goode but I had no experience of that

method I truad another way and put a price on the job. In leas

than ten minutea it was comrleted and so I get out of a diffioulty

The siage had new begun and all hande asttled down to barrioading

Although there had been a good deal of skirmiahing eround the whole

Union area, it sesmed qulte evident that the sniping and roar of the

Howth Bilfle fire left the military who already had ouite a number

killed that they did not feel quite sure of their position
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commandant oeannt fixed a largo trico our flag to the top

window of the west wing, which seaned to ant as a chellonge to the

crown foroes. A manhias un old on the roof of the royal

Hoapisal and it played quarters from dawn to dark.

wowards evening our pen started to break

through the 18 grsattg walls hasp in communiostion with

the main building diffioult job but it was

soon complated. The protection for the attendant

in bringing food to the cularly to the mental wards

was attended
to

with many exerting inoidnnts when the cay was coning

to a close fresh outpouts were selected for duty and it was not with out

its aleras

My companion in a large room faoing out on to the Bcuars had just

taken on "Watch" It was very dark, so I rested on the oppcaite aide

of the room Ra got into trouble with his Howth Rlfle by a cartridge

meeting jammed Hosover all I on remember in the flare and the

nolas for
to alarmed the "camp"

On the following
day,

Thesday a attack was made

from the to the

barriondes towares the deer porch autrence to out Hesdouarters The

attack was several killed So ouick was

the fire from shat and

the others made their retract

Thars was one rith this attack

One very tall aoldter into the Carpentars' shop which was at that

time near the front gate and me he know from an ahot that

he was "covered" he remained there until taken out in
a coffin I

happened to most this aftarwarde in Richmond Barrack and he

himself drew up the and anjoyed it He for there

admitted that the were of opinion that there were at

500 men the and had they know there ward only 50 he

said of us would have ever left alive

It was while that Volunteer Frank
Mr

Coograve's was the bullet his

throat
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Onthe following morning I went to the top room of the

building where he lay to see him and were it not for liam O'Flaherty

who ahouted lie down I would have mat the name fate as there was

a continuous anining and from the Royal Hospital

I was on my hands was passed through both aides

of the wooden over my
body I

maid a prayer for and myself

The control of the garrison had up

to this stage bean best was allotted to me on

the Tuesday evening Of food we had full and plenty and frequently

mall parcels of cooked food were thrown over the wall and

of a friendly
nature gave us the impression that there was a change

of opinion in our favour in the city

Wednasday was the day of oalm before the atora On Thuraday

some
of our men had just partaken and others were from

their midday meal on the call of attack to your guns

Cosgrave raised
the

groue
in charge

of Captain Murphy at the Front
building which was surrounded on all

widen by

This was my first to reach the other party of our men

as there was danger of In making my way as

instruoted erected by

our men had been removed from door and it was just a coinoldence
that a group of aoldier who were making

their way towards this were noticed in time When they saw

they were under they Wad
these soldiers made

their may through the door in ouestion our two forces would have

been and the results of the day's fighting would have
been

suite different

I disouased this point with amoon the following day

Although I insisted that I had passed through this particular door

and
that it was my contention that the inmates were reanonsibls

still he insisted that the barrioades
had

not been removed But

he was that if
the

military had got through we would have

had a different story to tell



-15-

However, having daliverad the mesasrge so Dantain Murphy, I ands

my ratura, soaling ladders, ote, and when sbout to enter the mivahan

wnion I had left 15 minuset I met sean moslynnmoslyna running

tcxards and informed me aunroundag we climbed on to

an outhouse, got on we a wall on to the main

building. whit bogs of us lay on

our oach on the rood fire from the Royal

Noapital and a anipar Edith Girenlar Road.

with refsrence to the ar. House. the tenant of the

house refarrad to infcmod me a touplo of Fmand afterwand that two

offiears of the British Aimy ware about arrosring him on a ahares of

an gnalling to men on the roof of the Dublin Union and what they

besitatad becmase they ysre undsr the impresalon that the twoman

refarrod to had been ahot.

It was closa on 11. 30 p.m. when wehsard Oaennt and Comnreve

whintling dod wave Ireland ouise olcme to phers as I ay and it was

then only than as vantarrd to as on our rctusn to

the Hesdouartera we realland the dsansrgte mght that Had taken plaoe.

al though we and Doan mnaring avery
tullaing

to ether with ouraelves would have been blown sky-high.

cathal Brughe Let Wenmoiceur or the kisoben moor having

icst a greet quantity of Mibod mueto his righteen wounde It

tranepired that the ailltay ward aloes to near nim onsllenge

when to aome on and figntr that their clra was

concontratod on the direbrion from whioh the yoiea cwme Iewdiate

steps Wave Tahen for Hi removal to the In firmary and on friday

fether Gerard C.O.C., arranged for his romoval to a City Houpital.

may I avail of this comortunity of poying trinmre to this Kindly Priest

and to the Other priosin who ainiatered to our spiritual msean during

the weet

The attack on this cooasion wan the wost sevare and Iaot of

the week and the gpastent rogaible oredit is bus to the Cosonders The

sourrgaoualy held the poaition. The attaok oammrodd about 3 p.m. and

continand for eloss on
Jour

nours and it and watimated yhat at least
600 millenary sook part.
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The Building Conaistel of six sections, Cathal Brugha, took chares

of one, Eamona Casnnt the
orther upstairs,

and Liam I. Cosgrave the

ground floor.

The severity of the on are from the damage done.

There Was little or no saly of the rooms, furniture

was broken and it was stand the machine ranite atone walls thst could

withstand the machine and several attamots were made

to un ercine the bullaing or poring.

On Fridcy thare wan a mperaticns and on Saturday

morning the surrender of the yolunteers was contemplated beosuse on
Friday a petrel shell struck the roof of the G.R.O. and the whole

balding burat into Mames Pesrse gave the order to removes the

wounded and evaouate the poat offices and be hiaself was the lsat to

leave the blasing headquartere. Hew headcuarters were than establiahed
in Moors Strest. The Post Offtoe collspsed in a rcar and it looked as

if all Dublin was in fmse flames.

Deapatoh Csrrying Was On Vie wand news on riday was

not reasauring. In the provinces all was qules., contrary to

expectations the bonbardad inprtang the cams in their

way: they were in a frenzy and had atoppad at nothing: their deter
mination was to Isvel and

Pearae accordingly summed up the pcsltion as followa "I desire

now, lest I may not have an opporthnity latne. to pay homage to the

gallantry of the aoldiers of frian fraouom who have during the weck

bean writing with fioe and stsel the most alorious chapter in the

later history of Ireland."

The Bandcuarters Staff ceoland that enough had bean doar and

that it time to arrest the alaughter of the oiyil poopulation

by Sritish shells and bullets. Oublin had bees redewmad from many

shsmes and made her nomd splondid mrons the names of citise and as

I hesrd pearss say one night in erungwiok street ublin has one great
shane to wind ont and than is that on man pisked his life to gave

Robert Emmet." Dublin Han wiped out that shame.



-17-

On Saturday,
it was decided to capitnlate and on Sunday morning

a message to that effect resond you Durlln Dnlon Addresaed to
Commandant Csannt and later Thomas Moronash

acoompanied by Fasher Strsat attended

ofcioially. Commandant the wnole roup of men

and informed them of the of
Su sttiona were

made that all abould sacoy milltary guerd. I man

one. of those to make the aurrandor on the grounds
that he had stood togenter all torgugh the fight and ought to stand

together to the end. This was agreed to but navarthalasa seyeral

broke away. The call to parade in the souare at the Hnion was as

humiliation. he marohad along to the gets to be mea with worked

anthusisam by a great arowe of people. All Along the route to St.

Patricx'a place we ware graeted with great jubiliation partioutarly

in the poorer areas.

The surrender took placp the in mtlltary faroetion

all guns, ste., being laid on the ground. Rajor Arastrong, who was in

onarge of the silicsy guerti me as teers as to
their names and addreaces and mare a demand for the surrender of all

arms. We then carohed to Rlohmond Barrsax Undar an flaborate atlltary
esccrt and packed in to reome in the on we had barery rood to stand.

The following members of the J. Coy. In 30th. wars on Motive

service during this easter areas. rnkt is As Our of
As.

(see List.)

The Journey from St. Patrick's plsce to Riohmond Barracks was not

no free and easy as the Journey froe the Union. the presences of the

military esaort somewhal snocourged those who had no aympathy with the

Vclunrears and I wall recelloct bearing many uncomplimchtary anouts when

we passed the strent cronainga at kilmainham and at wichmand Barrecka Gates

Certain people at the latter plsoe vary definitely informad the milltery

suard when we were passing through that they a re not inn feinars. some

years lster a en the kngilsh had 1aft it was amualpy to hear their voices
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shouting "Up the Republsc".

The wholssale arresting of men in different pants of the city and

country took place and Very soon the Barracks was full. Immediately

it was possible to get any of the "á"
den to identify different people,

most of those unideetifded sere Irs ted of to Internment camps in

England.

Those who had carried arms of were in any way identified with the

Volunteer Movement were sub ctad to rigid interrogation and inquiry.
For this puroose some hundred or more were removed to the Cymaasium,

here was a glass door at the entrance to the Hall, through waich we

could see "The Prince" and other prominent men who were watching
their "prey" As they identified anyone they immediately entered and

picked us out from the Group. In my case and in several other cases,

a local policeman came over and asked some question. "Such and such"

"Where have you bean" and getting no answer he retired. Then a Milltary

Officer came and took each one away. There ware in one group about
16 or 18 of us who wherecourtmartialled 36 men in all were

courtmartialled end we now had the Hall To oursslyes under an armed

guard. Major john MacBride all
his own

ultimate fate, crovided us with rugs and coats which he hired from the

Guard at 6d each as the eole was Intense.

I think it was on Mondey morning that Major MacBride called over

Inspector Love and said to that he thought that some
mistake had been made by my selection as one of the Headquarter Staff.
Love inquired my name and then retorted is it "so and of Inchicore.
Yes, was the Major's reply, and the result of McBride's inquiry is still
a my stary. I refer to this incident for the purocse of paying tribute
to a great man. MacBride when questioned at his courtmartial said "I
fought against England in South Africa I fought against them in this
revolt for Irish freedom and if I Iive and it is necessary, I would
fight sgainst them again."

P.B. Pearse, Thomas McDonagh, Tom Clarks, Jeseph Plunkett were
not in thi a particular Croup. Eanonu Csannt came to us early one
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morning and gave instruoticns that each of us was to make the best

defence possipls. Ceannt's face was badly torn by a soldier whendefanes

shaving him. Ceannt him solf made a maecarly defence on some legal

points but base Us all fareweld

The Courtmartlal Couatsted of thres Army Officers. The Charge made

against my self was enerally the same "That you tock up arms and

conspired against his sjesty's Governmont with a view to helping our

friends the Germans",

Q. You took part in an against the Government
At Jacob's Factory Cuilty or not

guilty.
A. Not guilty of helping the Germans and not guilty of beingin Jacob's factory.

A sries of otherquestions and answers followed and a query if

any witnesaes were availgble.

The last I saw of Sean MacDermott was on Wednesday when a party

of about eight of us were being brought under illtary ascort to

Kilmainham jail and on that Wednesday morning, P.H. Pearse, Edxard

Clarke were executed.

On Sunday Joseph Plunkett, Edward Daly, Michsel Hanrahan and William

Pearse were exechted and enalty were

Con Colbert, Esmonn Ceasnt, Connelly, Sean MacDarmott, H. Heuston,

M. Mallin and John MacBride and Thomas Kent in Cork, a total of 15.

During the nights or early mornings it was easy to ealiss that the

executions were taking place and no one knew their fate until

Saturday at midday when we were conscled when a Milltary

Officer accompanied by a Sergeant entered the cells and conveyed to us

the decisions of the varicus couptmartials. At about three o'clock

that evening we were conveyed to Mountjoy Prison. When passing out

of Kilmainham Prison I met a well known Isdy, Misc Gifford at the gate

and she very kindly undertook to take a note home for me. When we

arrived at Mounthjoy we enjoyed our first wash for several days our

hot bath on receyption was a luxury. Prison clothes were supplied

and the usual regul gticns, viz., photo graphing, finer prints, etc.,
were enforced.
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On the whole things were quist generally. On Friday (after a

week's lodging here) a wander came to my call and inquired how I was

progressing with my P.O. back my first attempt at back making He

told me to leave it for soncone at me to and to get ready to

leave for an English pricon At hour later we were on our way to the

North wall and put about as well as I can remember I

think there were 57 premises in the group abound for Portland prison

A military officer came to us in the told in of the best and

inquired as to what we for under told him very quickly that

we wanted tea, auger and cigarettes He left and returned with a good

supply He then asked several questions and summed up by saying that
he was at the battle of Mons and that it was only "so and so" to the

battle in O'Connell Strest, but that we the Volunteers must have known

that he was an frianman and a though he had not even a stick of rhubarb

with which to defend himself he did not even get hit He further

rewarded that we atarted the "racket" too soon and he bid us good night

and good luck and the bout stember

The fort Holes were our only means of observation and when

passing Lambar I Hushes gave us the

"Last Glimpse of Erin in his usual great style

All west all until we reaches Halyhead sometime after midnight

A large orowd taken from the

boat to the train between a double file of Military with fired Bayonets

the orowd which was exception surged around us when our

train atopped on a later
part

of our jurney a orowd gathered around

our reserved carrisges and the O/C in charge however gave instruction

for all blinds to be drawn and no person was peraitted to lotter near our

carrisge our military esoont on the whole were not unfriendly and they

invariably
sought

kesarise"

We resched Portland prison about 7 p.m. that evening and were

immediately parsded in the Reception Hall and the Riot Act was read to

us Several of the warders here were half-castes and offared us very

little consolation We were committed to our calls and given a change

of clothes which consisted of a huff coloured jacket boat can, cordurcey
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breaches with the bread arrew prominently displayed all over in

zig-zag form black and red stoekings an black shoes The Reverend

P. O'Loughlin, the prison charlain paid as an early visit and gave us

some consclation

For the first month finement making sacke in

our Cells Portland prtson was the principal prison

in England for of the warders

were very strict and came of our men consequently punished by being

confined to the "Click" a dark call and water for the trivial

offences such as talking

The dovernor was a very critical man and never lost an opportunity
of abousing any prisoners who were brought before him there are many

strange stories regarding him

However as I have stated the fullest discipline and regulatiens

were enforced The whole 57 Irishmen were stationed in one wing of

the Prison Our saily exercise consisted of half an hour after breakfast

and half an hour after pernicted once a

mouth and in lieu of a visit the letter subject to censorship

and an enquiry which a number were

questioned as to and Mary Dwyer One

answered that they were two very old and that they had very

large familles

A surprise order met with general resentment and protest All

bands were paraded but in "Dry Bath" which took the

for of a "surprise seapch" Everytime one left his call he was searched
and on the say consen for the "Dry Bath" every article in the call was
thrown about and there was very little time given for tidying again

Coning near caristmas the demand of our friends at homewere

beginning to bear fruit After seven mouths inportland and Dartmcor
the whole 125 prisoners were removed to lewas prison here there was
general rejoicing as many of those who had been actively engaged during

the sing had not an opportunity until now of comparing notes The

Authorithies nowsyer endeavoured to prevent association talking etc.,
but in this they failed A Committes was formed consiating

of Eoin MacNeill Kamonnde Valera E. Duggan and Thomas Ashe whoprepare
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a programme for an appeal to the Governor and through him a

to the Governmentfor political treatment.

It was decided that

1. we were to refuse to work, except for our own comfort andcleanliness.

2. we more to refuse to exorcise withoriminals or associate
with them except at Church.

3. Our hair was to be ahaved

4. The abolition of cartain rules.

The presenting of these in the course of few months

was decided on and every prisenor was made fully acquainted as to what

was expected of him. when hostilities commenced it was pointed out

that there was very little hope of the Government Home Office yielding

to our request end that all kinds of punishment would be imposed and

if necessary very drastic measured would be taken insisting on the

observance of the Prison Rules and that small groups would be transferred

to different English Prisons and forced to associate with

criminals The whole was then divided upin various working,

parties and at. the conclusion of Exercise the prisoners would file

In the respective parties, Laundry workshop Garden Sweeping,

Cooking Etc.,
There

was as occaslonal isvasion in the P.O. to complain

On the first hart-cutting day at Lowes a few of us were ordered

to the ground fleer for a "hair cut" Just as the Barber was

opersting the Governor when I must here state was a human decent man,

observed that I was remonstrating with the barber and ho inquired

the cause. I told him that the machine was pulling the hair out instead

of cutting it and inter that. night he called to my coil and

Inquired if I was the man who had his whiskers pulled. I replied that

I was and he said ho was very sorry but that it washosnis fault.

One day the stirabout was exceptionally thin and 30 applied for

cards for the H.O. willie Corrigan was about third to get as fares

there ctor's room. He was asked what was wrong and when he made his

corpla1nt the Doctor replied that "he wou1d see into it". Corrigan

answered by saying "well Sir. if you do, you'll see the bottom."

There wee one of the party who for some reason or other used

to reserve all the day's food, breakfast, and dinner until the ran



23

hour. The Sweeping gang which one sisted of R. Brennan Boland

and two others, raided this man's cell one day and eat all his

potates, leaving him only the skins.

The Governor at Lewes wanted his house decorated. A painting

job had already bears done by our painters and Decorators "Thornton

and co.," and he was so pleased with the work that they were

approached and promised to do a good job. The Governor's house was

some distance from the Prison. After Dinking the matter over, the

work was started on an estimate supplied by to Engineer. The work

was a few weeks in hand when the Engineer queried the cost and the job

showing no signs of completion although there was a general approval

of the workmanship. However, a strike wasdeclared and the work was

only resumed on conditions that there would not be any further interference.

when it was finished the Governor brought his friends to

see it and it was some time before anyone realised that the doors

and panels etc., had been painted Green, white and orange. Before

the walls were painted one of the gang
was

selected to keep the Warder

in charge engaged talking on the political situation in Ireland

relating all kinds of stories and tales, While the painters were in

the meantime
busy

painting "This
house

bas been decorated by the

Irish Prisoners of War, 1917." before putting on the wall paper.

Bi11 Partridge was in very poor health end was given an open

air job at the Prison on trance. The warders here had an opportunity

of talking and they always availed of it. Having complained that he

usually got very sich crossing the Irish Channel as it was very rough

the Warder queried as to why he did not come all the way in the train

Wasn't there an Irish Mal1 end a "connection' with England. "There is"

says Partridge "but not by rail."

The occasion of the Longford Election was one of general enthusiasm

When the news came through that Joe McGuinness had been elected, he

was chaired through the grounds.

The different religious festivals were fuly observed on al

elaborate scale and our songsters, Gerald Crofts, Seamus Hughes, and

T. Bevan etc., ably contributed at the special services at Xmas and

Easter, together with the Prison Choir.

The publication of a Journal which was named
Dn BriaDel?

"The Bugle"
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was given very favourable support. Almost every one of the group

in someway or another assisted in its publication and manufacture. Our

literary men contributed articles in Irish and English and it was without

doubt a valuable souvenir but unfortunatoly it was captured on the

occasion of the order confining all prisoners to "Separate Cells."

The starting of satirical Journal "Lewes Laughter" was interrupted

by the "breaking up" of the Prison, which I will now describe from

memory.

Messages had already passed between the Prison and our people

in Dublin and on Whit Saturday an expected wire in code arrived for

Harry Boland "Uncle Bob is dead." As this message was in care of the

Chaplain he called on Boland and expressed his regret and undertook to

say a Mass on the following Sunday. Boland had no alternstive but to

explain and full confidence was maintained.

On whit Sunday at exercise she word was passed round that

all articles on loan were to be re urned and that a search would be

made at any time. On Monday morning, as exercise had concluded the

air was full of electricity. All working Parties had assembled for

their respective occapations when as arranged the Prisoners' Committee

headed by Mr. de Valera, approached the chief Warder, whe stood in the

centre of the grounds and handed him anan ultimatum based on the lines

already referred to, demanding political treatment. Precisely at the

homent of the handing of the papers, which consisted of several sheets

of foolscap, the whole body lifted their caps andcaps gave three ringing

cheers. Sean Etchingham shouting said "Oh body that has been heard

in Ireland." The cheers brought the Governor from his office. The

Head Warder explained the position to him and both advanced to the men

and the Governor informed them that he
could

not comply with the

request as it was a matter for me Home Office.

The Warders were in a state of panic and from what we could learn

they had never experienced a mutiny
before.

The Governor also invited

anyone who did not wish to be punished as a result of this

insubordination to step forward. No one complied and the order was

then given to put the prisoners in "separate cells" that is solitary

confinement, Our leaders fully anticipated the general course of
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handcuffed and in chains. On Thursday Paul Ga1ligan and I were

handcuffed together and with four others, Robert Brennan, the two

Bevans and Faulkiner, were linked together with a trace chain when on

the public rod. Immediately any Of these groups left the Prison there

was continued singing of national songs which had the warders who were

in charge, in a state of frenzy. Our destination this time was park-hurst

and the journey from Lewes was a long one.

At Brighton, Station. nine of us were put sitting in a 'Waiting Room.

sitting right opposite I saw a very familiar face, in the person of

Michael Staines, now Senator Stainea. Using a litle Irish, I spoke

loudly to a couple of my companions, who were a couple of yards away

from me, and I got a reply in return which brought a mile to Michac1's

face. Later on when were in our compartments on the train, Staines

approached, with a view to entering the compartment as an ordinary

passenger, but he wan told that he could not get accommodation. The

Warder. turning to Paul Ga1ligan and myself, inquired who was the

intruder. I replied that he was possibly a Pressman and that he

should not be lot into our carriage as we did not want him. Tacking

a Prayer Book from my pocket, I tore the blank left from the end of it

those travelling, was then written on it. Galligan relied this slip

of paper up in the form of a ball end as the trained moved off. Staines

on the alert on. the plat!erm the peper was "shot" out to him and he

held it under bin foot.
until

the train left.

On the following morning the "Independent" fully reported the

removal etc., from which the following is an extract

IRISH PRISONERS AT LEWES REMOVEDTO OTHER JAILS.

(panned by Censor.)

"The authorities, it. is understood, intend (says our London Corres-

pondent) to tranafor nearly all the 117 lrish Prisoners who were

Incarcerted ay Lewes Prison to other Prisons. So tar about. 30

prisoners have been transferred; Professor Do Valera and Mr. Thomas

Hunter to Maidstone and the following amongst others to the number

it is believed of 20 Robert Brennan, Enniscorthy, Thomas and Charles

Ecvan, Peter Doyle, J. Faulkner, George Plunkett (all of Dublin) Joe

Burke (Oranmore) and peper Galligan (Cavan) to Perk1nrnt Prison
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atertodtherackatbysinging"AtBeolawagoswasthesanwassetting
wedrovethe

Military Archives ever
tousandtheaggrosaivenesssartad.TheWardartapprised"forthe
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Leaving my cell which was on the fourth storey, I saw a party of

Prisoners of all shades on the ground floor, hen I reached the end

of the stairs a man with three red
bars

on his coat, equalling three

years, beckoned to me. I went. over to him and stood in the file beside

him He shook my hand

saying

"I an Irishman too" "Do you know so

and so." I said "Yes, He is O.K.". "Keep your heart up" he said "do

not mind these fellows here they are,

the

sepuff ofEngland and if you

want to do the same here as you all did in Lewes we will be with you."

We got the order to marah and when we arrived the Church we found

that all our companions. had got to get her. mass over we anticipated trouble

and it came. Marching to the exercise ground Brennan whispered then I give

the word "0ne step to the rear" be on the alert. In a few moments we got

the "Halt." then "stand at ease." Brennan then gave his order which

was responded to and the excietment commenced. The result as that we were

again ordered to seperate cells. we had only reached our cells when we

heard glass breaking and it transpired afterwards that a Scotchman thinking

that there was another revolt had joined in the "scrap".

I was confined to bed sick on Monday. When the Doctor entered

the

dell the first question he asked was "Is this another Irishman" and when

the warder "Yes" he said "there is nothing with him that
I see."

We were
again brought before the Governor on Monday to explain our

conduct in Church. In replying to the queries of the Governor I remarked

that we would refuse to give any undertaking megarding our future conduct

in Church and that we in Ireland always knew how to conduct themselves.

"well" he said "you will not get to Church again until you promise."
Further requests were made to us to exercise and offers of

unlimited time were of no avail.

Frank Lawless who had not been barbered for some weeks was

set upon by four warders and in at tempt made to cut his hair with the

result that two bunches of his hair were pulled out in the struggle.

The next Important move was when the Orderly on my landing

shouted through the door "Aye Paddy you are going to be released

Bonar Law said so in the House last night." Coming
events

cast their

shadows before.

About three o'clock on that Saturday we were all assembled



in themain The
chargewehad expressedhis atpar
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ministered to Sir Roger, had not been informed of our arrival and he

felt it very much. However, he provided a special Mess for us at which

two Warders assisted. On our return to our cells the usual morning

rations were extended but of prison fare we had quite sufficient and

we were all overjoyed.

The Pentonville staff
was

augmented by
warders from Dar tmoor

and

Portland Prisons Some, or should I
saw most of

them, were not unfriendly

unfriendly but those of this class were disciplinary.
We fully appreciated

their position which as car be reasonably imagined was not fully

understood and fifteen
months experience

of
a type other than criminal

prisoners, left a great impression on
them.

There were a few who went out of their way to make our position

unbearable if they could do so there was one of this type at Portland

named Kent. It was often thought that he overdone his job and he was

mainly responsible for all the Bread and Water punishments which our men

received at Portland.

To-day we were at a 'loose end" free and easy, chatting and

passing the time while we were being fitted out in readymades. Kent

was the only man in Pentonville that day to whom nobody spoke and he

certainly felt hisposition very Keenly. Welarded later that he was

dismissed
the

following keen far bringing oat a letter for a prisoner.

while I was awaiting by turn
for a suit, I went as directed to the

Hospital for a
tonic. As I enter so the ward I was surrourede by about

six warders who questioned me as to the Irish situation.

No. 1 enquired
what

was therow about the Chairm anship of the

Mansion House Convention Why not put the fellow in the job who was

creating all the trouble "Mr. Sinn Fein?" When I explained No. 1 was sub-

jected to a good deal of banter.

What a change, we were now trying to identify one another

in our new readymades and as we passed from the Tailors shop we paid

a visit to the Prison Department of Finance and any man whohad
broughthad

money into prison with him in the first instance it refunded in full

and those who had none on arrival received 5/-:

Our Departure waskept very quiet. Vehicles had been pro-

vided and we started for Euston Station. Having crossed the road towards

towardsthe entrance to the station, we were urged to hasten our steps

and the whistle of the engine also warned us that there was no time to
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1ose. A lady dressed in Green informed us that thetrain was a specia1

one, and that it was leaving an hour before the usual time and
that

there was great disappointment among
the Irish in London as they had 124

hampers provided for the
prisoners

ant it was not impossible to have them

delivered in time. Post offices wereclosed and
no telegrams could

be
sent.

We hoarded our train and at the first stop raided the
station

restaurant. The waiters informed us the train was unexpected and

advised us to wire to Chatham to have teas
ready.

This was done and at

Chatham we thoroughly enjoyed the repast. We reached Holyhead in good

time. Here a few minutes were devoted to drill and military formation

which was repacated on board the Royal Mai Steamer.

Wehad a pleasant crossing and reached Dublin on scheduled time

to the chorus of "Ire1and we bid you the top of the morning."

It was the story of very simple, earnest dooings, but it

was the beginning of an achievement by the people of this country for

their country that few of us dared to try and foresee. When I see all

that has been accomplished since, and I need not enumerate it, I ask

myself what manner of men
brought

this about. They were simple-

minded, unpretentious, lacking
in bluster or self-assertiveness. They

came from all ranks of soebety,
and yet there was not one of them who

could not associate on the easiest possible terms. and discuss in the

readiest possible way, their work and their objects, with any other

person
in the Movement.

Tom Clarke, who had grown old in English

Goals as a punishment for
his work

for Ireland, could associate and work

and be the confidant of young Sean McDermott, andSeamus Connolly, the

foremost figure in the Labout Movement, could be the friend end confidant

of Tomes MacDonagh, who was a professor in the National University. Pad-

raig Pearse, one of the foremost figuresin the language and educational

Movements in the country, could associate and work and plan with the most

ordinary worker on the Dublin quays. There were Soccer and foot-ball

and Rugby men. They came from the staff of the Abbey Theatre. as well

as from the ranks of the Trades Union. There was not one of them in

their own way, and in the isolation of their work, who felt his

insignificance as I did when I stood in Emerald Square to take my

little part in the Rising and saw no-one but a big policeman in front

of me but they all knew in these mo ments that the rest were there, and
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eventhoughtheydidnot it andtheyfelt thecall
"ComeIn!"

Hehavetoworkin the howeverisolates
individualworkersmayfor therestarethere. Ear
of themis doinghisown thecall is "ComeIn!"
If wedonotfalterto-dayin wearebringthespiritthe
guidedovertheworkof 1916andbroughtfromit thegreatfruits,will
watchoverourworkto-dayandbringno

Alderman Doyle

O'Rehul JV Fe
IV Ball

Dublin


